ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 23, 2007
3:06 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Jay Ranras
Representative Robert L. "Bob" Buch
Representative Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 42

"An Act increasing the mninum wage; creating an annua
adjustnment to the mninmm wage based on the rate of inflation
and providing for an effective date.”

- FAI LED TO MOVE CSHB 42(L&QC)

HOUSE BILL NO. 14

“"An Act relating to the purchase of alcoholic beverages and to
access to licensed premses; relating to civil liability for
certain persons accessing licensed premses; requiring driver's
licenses and identification cards to be marked if a person is
restricted from consum ng al coholic beverages as a result of a
conviction or condition of probation or parole and relating to
fees for the marked license; and requiring the surrender and
cancel lation of driver's |icenses under certain circunstances.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 42
SHORT TI TLE: ALASKA M NI MUM WAGE

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GARA, CRAWORD, GARDNER  BUCH,
DOLL, DOOGAN, HOLMES, GUTTENBERG, KERTTULA, GRUENBERG

01/ 16/ 07 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/ 07

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- February 23, 2007



01/ 16/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (H L&C, FIN

02/ 09/ 07 (H) L&C AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 09/ 07 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

02/ 23/ 07 (H) L&C AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Presented HB 42.

VI NCE BELTRAM , Executive President

Al aska State AFL-CI O

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during hearing on HB 42.

DOROTHY W LSON, Busi ness Omner
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of HB 42.

PAUL WOLFSON, Statistical Research Associate

Tuck School of Business

Dar t nout h Col | ege

Hanover, New Hanpshire

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during hearing on HB 42.

CH P WAGONER, Executive Director

Al aska Conference of Catholic Bishops

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during hearing on HB 42.

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWFORD

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as a joint prime sponsor of HB 42.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR KURT COLSON called the House Labor and Commrerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:06:05 PM Represent ati ves
Neurman, Gatto, Gardner, Buch, Ranras, and O son were present at
the call to order

HB 42- ALASKA M NI MUM WAGE

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- February 23, 2007



3:06:46 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 42, "An Act increasing the mnimum wage; creating
an annual adjustnent to the m ninmum wage based on the rate of
inflation; and providing for an effective date."

3:07:25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN nmade a notion to adopt CSHB 42(L&0O),
Version 25-LS0226\K, Chenoweth/Wayne, 2/9/07, as the working
docunent .

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS obj ect ed for di scussion purposes.

3:07:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA, Alaska State Legislature, joint prine

sponsor, began by expl aining that the m nimum wage in Al aska has
not been raised since 2002. Prior to this, it was raised twce

in 15 years. He explained that living costs have increased
significantly since the nost recent mninum wage increase. The
current mnimm wage is $7.15 per hour. Congress is currently

considering an increase in the federal m ninmm wage. He opi ned
that this reflects the reality that currently, the m ninum wage
is a “poverty level wage,” earning a full-tine enployee $14, 300

per year. He pointed out that a single parent whose rent is
$800 per nonth would have $100 left over for other nonthly
expenses. He explained that the original version of HB 42
increased the mininmum wage to $8 per hour. This proposed
I ncrease woul d be adj ust ed for inflation over tinme.
Additionally, HB 42 would require that the Al aska m nimum wage
remain $1 higher than the federal m ninmm wage. He expl ai ned

that Version K was drafted by the House Labor and Conmerce
Standing Comrmittee, and would increase the mninmum wage to $7.15
per hour, or 50 cents higher than the federal mninmm wage,
whi chever is greater.

3:09: 45 PM

CHAIR OLSON explained that if Version K is reported from the
House Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee, the original
version of the bill nmay be brought up at sone point during the
remai nder of the commttee process.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA, referring to the original version of HB 42,
expl ai ned that increasing the mninum wage to $8 per hour would

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 3- February 23, 2007



result in a $16 thousand salary. Wth the addition of a
permanent fund dividend (PFD), this would put the wage earner

“slightly above” the poverty Iline. In Washington State, the
mnimum wage is close to $8 per hour, and in California, the
m nimum wage will reach $8 per hour in 2008. Currently, 15
percent of enployees in Alaska earn |less-than $10 per hour. He

opined that if the wage is increased, wages would also be
increased for the 10-15 percent of enployees working slightly
above the m ni num wage.

3:12: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS inquired as to whether increasing the
m ni mum wage nmay retard wage growh for those enployees earning
between $10 and $15 per hour, as enployers attenpt to satisfy
t he m ni mum wage i ncrease.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA, referring to a report by the Economc
Policy Institute explained that this report suggests that
increasing the mnimm wage wll result 1in an equivalent
i ncrease for enpl oyees earni ng above the m ni num wage.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS restated his question regarding how the
i ncrease would effect enployees earning between $10 and $15 per
hour .

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied that he has never seen a study that
addresses this question. He reiterated that the studies he has
seen generally show an equivalent wage increase for those
enpl oyees earning slightly above the m ni mum wage. He said:

My belief is that it’s a conpetitive pressure. For
the least skilled workers — if their wages are going
to go up, starting at a mninmm wage, that forces the
wages to go up for nore skilled workers, as well. I
can’t guarantee ... that that's true, I can’'t
guarantee ... anything about econom cs.

CHAI R OLSON explained that Version K was drafted in an attenpt
to “neet both sides part way.”

3:16: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN inquired as to how the proposed m ninmm
wage i ncrease woul d effect workers’ conpensation

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied that he does not know.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- February 23, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN offered his understanding that this would
i ncrease the anobunt paid by the enployer. He questioned what
affect this would have on an individuals ability to get a job.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA commented that [raising the m nimum wage] is
a “value judgnent.” He reiterated his belief that the mninmm
wage should be a “living wage.” He noted that there is nuch
di scussion regarding those individuals who do not work for a
living and what types of benefits should be provided to them
For those individuals who do decide to work for a living, this
wage should allow themto |ive above the poverty |evel.

3:19: 59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER objected to the adoption of Version K
Speaking as a joint prine sponsor of HB 42, she shared her
belief that the |ower mninum wage increase included in Version
K is inadequate. She then renpoved her objection.

[ Al t hough not formally w thdrawn, the commttee treated
Representati ve Ranras’ objection as w thdrawn. ]

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS requested a detailed explanation of the
changes made by Version K

CHAI R OLSON expl ained that Version K keeps the mnimm wage to
$7.15 per hour, or 50 cents above the federal m nimm whichever
is greater.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that he is involved in the
hospitality industry, and therefore has a conflict of interest.
Wiile he is not opposed to increasing the mninmum wage, he
expressed concern regarding how this would effect those
enpl oyees “in the back of the house, that are earning between $9
and about $15 [per hour].” He explained that in an attenpt to
neet the wage and hour requirenents, the elasticity is renoved
from the enployer’s ability to increase wages for the

af orenenti oned group. He said “l would |ike to see the state of
Al aska innovate a tip-tax credit that sinply mrrors whatever
the prevailing federal mninmm wage is. O, in this case, not
go higher than the state mnimum wage, for as long as the state
m ni mum wage is still higher than the federal m ninmum wage.” He
opined that this wuld result in wage increases for the
enpl oyees in “the back of the house.” He opined that the

af orenenti oned enpl oyees are absorbing 100 percent of the cost

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 5- February 23, 2007



for the enployer to conply with state and federal m nimum wage
requi renents.

3:27:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BUCH requested that Representative Gara detail
the difference between the original version of HB 42, and
Ver si on K

REPRESENTATI VE GARA explained that the “citizen’s initiative” of
2002 increased the mnimm wage to $7.15 per hour, to be

adjusted with inflation. Had the aforenentioned initiative
remained in effect, the mninm wage would currently be $8 per
hour . He reiterated that the original version of HB 42

i ncreases the mninumwage to $8, to be adjusted with inflation.
Addi tionally, the mninmum wage woul d rermain $1 above the federal
m ni mum wage. He then reiterated that Version K proposes a
m ni mum wage of $7.15 per hour, or 50 cents above the federal
m ni num wage, whi chever is higher. He offered his understanding
that an increase to the federal mninmum wage is currently being
consi der ed. If passed, the federal mninmum wage would be
increased to $7.25 over a two-year tinme frame. Under Version K,
this would result in a nmaximum state mni nrum wage of $7.75 per
hour .

REPRESENTATIVE GARA, in response to Representative Ranras’

concerns, pointed out that he is also a restaurant owner. He
stated that the previous mninmm wage increase did not have a
detrinental inpact on his business. He opined that raising the

wage for the |owest wage earners does not have to take noney
away from hi gher wage earners. This may, instead, cut into the
profit margin. He said “I would rather have ny profit margin
cut into than take noney away from soneone who makes $10-$12 per
hour.” This may al so change the businesses cost structure. He
poi nted out that the mninmm wage was raised for all businesses,
whi ch then had the sane “conpetitive disadvantage.” Businesses
then had the opportunity to either cut into profit nargins or
raise prices to reflect the higher wage. He went on to say that
some econom sts believe that raising the mninmm wage benefits
the econony, while others disagree. However, he opined that
there is a growing consensus that the mninum wage does not
detrinmental ly inpact the econony.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS sai d:

|’m not an economst, but I'm just telling you the
facts. And | don’t know how many people are on your

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 6- February 23, 2007



restaurant staff, and ... I’m not going to suggest

that yours is nore typical than ... the restaurant
interest that | have, or those in the peer group that
| discuss with. But I'mjust ... looking for a little
spirit of conprom se. | don’t hear any accommopdati on
at all, and ... you're gonna lose ne. ... Do you
appreciate at all - that it has any inpact on the back
of the house people, when you put 100 percent of the
burden of the payroll increase on the front of the
house people — as it relates to raising the mninmm

wage with a tipped workforce?
REPRESENTATI VE GARA repl i ed:

| honestly believe that if you raise the m ni num wage,
you al so raise the wages of the people who earn above
the m nimum wage. So, | think you and | have a
different analysis on this. I”’m not going to control
your vote on this commttee. I want you to vote your
conscience, and I want you to vote out a bill that you
think neets your needs. I’m only here to tell you
what | believe. And ... personally, | don't believe
in atip credit. ... | see waitresses and waiters who
work at my restaurant who earn a tip above their
m ni num wage and still barely make ends neet. | would
have trouble going to those workers and telling them |
proposed a |ower mnimm wage for them than ... for
[those enpl oyees who do not earn tips].

3:32:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS surnised that there may be a difference in
the “basic building blocks” of the two businesses.

3:33:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said “Sonetinmes when | hear ‘nininum wage,

| hear ‘nmaxi mum wage.’” He opined that “anybody can pay nore.”
He relayed a recent conversation with |ocal business owners. He
then offered his understanding that the aforenentioned business
enpl oys 25 individuals, each of whom earn the mnimum wage. The
af orenenti oned enpl oyees are happy with this wage; however, none
are working to support a famly. He opined that the business in
guestion is able to pay nore than the m ni num wage, and perhaps
does for sone enployees. Although sone businesses may be unabl e
to remain open if required to pay a higher mninmm wage, he
stated his belief that $8 per hour is not too nuch noney.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- February 23, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE = GARA, in response to a question from
Representative Gatto, explained that the current mninmum wage
pays roughly $3,000 per year less than the poverty level, for a
famly of two. He explained that raising the mninum wage to $8
per hour and adding a permanent fund dividend would result in an
income that is above poverty |evel. He offered his belief that
$9 or $10 per hour woul d be nore appropriate.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, referring to a handout in nenbers’
packets, pointed out that certain states prospered as a result
of increasing the mninum wage. He inquired as to how raising
t he m ni num wage woul d hel p busi nesses.

REPRESENTATIVE GARA replied that in Wshington State, the
m ni rum wage is $7.60 per hour, while in ldaho, it is below $6
per hour. He explained that the higher skilled workers
rel ocated to Washi ngton State. As a result, the businesses in
“border towns” thrived, and |ocal chanbers of comrerce dropped
any opposition to the m nimum wage i ncrease. He stated that he
is unable to say exactly what happens to the econony when the
m ni mum wage i s raised, as experts do not agree. He pointed out
an econom st who previously believed that increasing the mninmm
wage woul d have a detrinental inpact on the econony; however, as
a result of research done in the 1990s, no |onger believes this.
He reiterated his belief that this is a val ue judgnent.

3:38:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN expressed agreenent wth Representative
Gatto’s comments. In regard to whether the mninmm wage
increase would affect profits, he suggested that businesses
would raise prices to maintain the profit margin. He opi ned

that it is inportant to maintain a certain profit margin.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA, in response to guesti ons from
Representative Neuman, stated that he is a co-owner of Snow City
Caf é, LLC. He explained that he does not participate in the
managenent of the restaurant. Sonme enpl oyees earn the m ninmum
wage, while others earn above m ni nrum wage. He stated that, as
an owner, he does not worry that a “npbdest increase in the
m ni rum wage” would take away from profits. Al'l  businesses
would be required to raise prices, so there would not be a
conpetitive disadvantage. He agreed that the custoner nmay pay
nor e. In response to an additional question regarding his
business, he clarified that he is unsure whether any enployees
are paid | ess than $8 per hour.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 8- February 23, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN expressed concern regarding how this would
ef fect businesses ability to enpl oy workers.

3:43: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied that studies have shown that an
increase in the mninmm wage does not negatively inpact the

ability to find enploynent. He comented that “the grow ng
consensus anobng economists ... is that the effects of the
m ni num wage on enploynent are very mnimal, if any.” He
offered his belief that increasing the mninmm wage would not
“deny people work,” and reiterated that this is a value
j udgment .

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, in regard to the inpact on the enployer
opined that the additional cost would be mninmal. He opined
that prices may be raised accordingly, and custoners would not
avoi d patroni zing a particular establishment.

3:47:18 PM
REPRESENTATI VE BUCH offered his understanding that these are
entry |evel positions. He pointed out that the mninmm wage
increase would apply to all industries. He said “lI’m encouraged
that this addresses an issue [in] a very l|level manner.” He
opined that increasing the mnimum wage would provide an
opportunity to enhance the learning capabilities of enployees
earning the mninmum wage. He surmised that it may also have

this effect on those earning slightly above the m ni mrum wage.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS inquired as to the unintended consequences
t hat may occur.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied that this may effect the profit

margin, or cause enployers to go out of business. He offered
his hope that this would not occur. He said “It rings true with
me, when | read the studies, that ... increasing the m ninum
wage does not cause a detrinental inpact on enploynent. ... But
| think, maybe [this is because] | want that to ring true.” |In
regard to a tip-tax credit, he said “lI didn't nean to .
dismss it as a wong idea, it’s just ... sonething that |

personal Iy disagree with.”

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS reiterated his question regarding the
uni nt ended consequences this m ght have on the enpl oyees.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 9- February 23, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE GARA reiterated that certain studies have shown
that a mninmnum wage increase would result in an equivalent
increase for those enployees earning slightly above the m nimm
wage. He opined that this is a good result.

3:51:10 PM
REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that this is an *“intended”
consequence. He reiterated his concern regarding the

“uni nt ended” consequences.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA sai d:

| firmy believe it will enhance the quality of life
of those wage earners. | don’t believe that there
will be wunintended consequences. | believe it’l

raise the wage scale of people who work for a living
and get paid very little. It’s not just young workers
who earn | ow end wages. I[t’s immgrants - people who

speak English as a second |anguage, who are not young
people, who try to raise a famly, who conme to this
country and start at |owend jobs. If you have an
i dea of unintended consequences — | can’t think of
one, but | also can’t guarantee you they won't happen.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated that while he respects this point
of view, he does not agree.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said “I wish |I could guarantee you that |
was right about this. | just believe that I'’mright about this,
and | think everybody in this room believes that they're right
about this, whatever their opinion is.”

3:53: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked whether one unintended consequence
may be that |ess jobs are avail abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA shared his belief that this would not occur;
however, he cannot guarantee this.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN opined that this wuld have a |I|arger
effect on small er busi nesses.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied that while he cannot speak for all

smal | businesses, it would be false to assune that i ncreasing
the m nimum wage would result in profit |oss, higher prices, or

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -10- February 23, 2007



that it would have no inpact. He pointed out that econonic
theory points to a conbination of these. He offered his belief
that any detrinment is offset by the positive inpact of paying
enpl oyees a better wage, thus enabling himor her to afford nore
than food and rent.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN stated that he does not agree. He offered
his belief that increasing the mninmm wage wll result in
hi gher prices, which wll negatively effect those who earn a
| ower incone.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, in regard to unintended consequences,
stated that increasing the mninmum wage nmay result in |ay-offs.
He opined that the enployer may then encourage the remaining
enpl oyees to increase productivity, in order to rehire the
enpl oyees who were laid off.

3:57:04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER stated that during a recent trip to
Denali National Park and Preserve, she noticed a great nunber of

i nternational enployees. She shared her belief that there are
not nmany workers in Al aska who are willing to work for mninum
wage. Therefore, the mninmum wage increase would not result in
Al askans | osing jobs. She asked whether Representative Gara

woul d agr ee.

REPRESENTATIVE GARA replied that this has also been his
experi ence. Referring to the business he co-owns, he stated
that the previous mninmm wage increase resulted in a delay in
di vidend di sbursenent to owners; however, the enploynent |evels
were not effected.

3:58:41 PM

VINCE BELTRAM, Executive President, Alaska State AFL-CIO
[ Anerican Federation of Labor and Congress of Industrial
Organi zations], stated that he is in support of HB 42. He

expressed di sappointnent with the changes made by Version K He
expl ai ned that previously, the Al aska AFL-Cl O gathered over 50
t housand signatures in support of adjusting the m ninum wage for
inflation, in addition to maintaining a state m ni nrum wage that
is $1 over the federal m ninum wage. He opined that |ower wage
earners have “lost ground,” as the cost of l|living has increased.
He pointed out that both Wshington State and Oregon have a
m ni mum wage that is adjusted for inflation.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -11- February 23, 2007



MR. BELTRAM, in regard to whether an increase in the m ninmm
wage would result in loss of jobs, explained that in other
states, the opposite has been true. He gave details regarding
the effect this has had on the econony in Wshington State,
pointing out a 10.1 percent increase in restaurant and bar
enpl oynent .

4:03:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS commented that the increase in enploynent
may have been higher if the m nimum wage had not been increased.
He opined that this may have retarded the potential for growth
over time.

4:04: 05 PM

MR. BELTRAM replied that this is unknown. However, the
enpl oynment rate increased after the mninmm wage increase was
i npl enent ed. He pointed out that there is nmuch agreenent anong
econom sts that increasing the federal and state m ninum wage
and adjusting it for inflation can significantly inprove the
quality of life for lowincone workers, wthout adverse effects.
Additionally, many of these econonmi sts previously believed the
opposite to be true. In regard to the federal m ninum wage, he
stated that following the last increase, the Economc Policy
Institute did not find any significant job |oss associated with
the increase. The |owwage |abor narket experienced | ower
unenpl oynent rates, increased famly incone, and |ower poverty
rates.

4: 05: 33 PM

MR. BELTRAM, in response to a question from Representative
Gatto, explained that there is no data to support the belief
that there would have been a higher percentage increase in
enpl oynent, had the mninum wage not been increased. He
expressed his wllingness to consider data that woul d
substantiate this argunent.

4:07:55 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO surm sed that the increase in enploynent
woul d have been higher, based on the information before the

conmittee. He stated his preference for testinony that is
factual and substanti al .

4:09: 28 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- February 23, 2007



MR. BELTRAM replied that the information he has provided was
prepared by the Bureau of Statistics. He reiterated that he
does not have any way to show what would have occurred w thout
an increase in the mninmm wage. Wile the enploynent increase
may have been higher w thout the m ninum wage increase, he has
not seen data to substantiate this.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO questioned whether the mninum wage
i ncrease should be higher, if raising it results in an increase
in enploynent. He asked whether there is a nunber that is nost
appropri at e.

MR. BELTRAM replied that he is unable to adequately address
this.

4:11: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN of fered his understanding that Washington
State has experienced a decline in higher inconme jobs. This may

have resulted in nore |ower-wage enployees. He surm sed, then,
that this wmy account for the aforenentioned enploynent
i ncrease. He inquired as to the affect this legislation would

have on nenbers of the Al aska AFL-Cl O

MR. BELTRAM replied that while this nmay not directly inpact
Al aska AFL-CIO nenbers, it would affect them eventually. He
pointed out that the Al aska AFL-CIO also represents |ower wage
earners that do not have representation. He stated that
inflation adjustnments would make |abor costs nore predictable
for enployers and allow Alaskans to rise above the poverty
I evel, while increasing the anmount of noney circulating through
t he econony. In conclusion, he opined that the data has shown
that increases in the mninum wage would inprove the econony.
He urged the conmittee to support HB 42.

4:14: 35 PM

DOROTHY W LSON, Business Omer, stated that she is in opposition
of HB 42. She explained that she owns two snall businesses in
Juneau. An increase in the mninmm wage that is adjusted for
inflation would be devastating to snall businesses. She shared
her experience that enployees are not willing to work at the

m ni mum wage. Her business currently offers a base wage of $9
per hour, which is increased after 30 days. Wen |ower earning
enpl oyees receive a wage increase, those at higher levels

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -13- February 23, 2007



request equival ent increases. She then detailed how a $1
i ncrease woul d effect her businesses.

4:17:26 PM

M5. WLSON, in response to a question from Representative
Gardner, reiterated that her enployees are not willing to work
for the mnimum wage. |If this rate was increased, the enployees
would insist on making nore per hour. She opined that the
m ni mum wage should encourage enployees to inprove, and find
better jobs. She shared her experience working for mninmm

wage, and offered her understanding that the majority of m ninmm
wage earners are youth who have not worked before, college
students, or retired persons.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER agreed that a m ninum wage earner would
want to inprove his or her life. She questioned whether an
i ndi vi dual working year-round for $8 per hour would be “inspired
to want to inprove their life.”

M5. WLSON opined that applicants would not be willing to work
for $8 per hour.

4:21:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER appl i ed her question to those individuals
wor ki ng for $9 per hour.

M5. WLSON shared her belief that this is true. She added that
generally, the mninmm wage is considered a “training wage” and
not a “living wage.”

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, in regard to a comment from Ms. WIson
regarding the “marketplace requirenent,” opined that if the
mar ket pl ace requires that enployees be paid $9 per hour, this
woul d support the argunent for increasing the mninmm wage
st at ew de.

M5. WLSON shared her belief that if the mnimm wage was
i ncreased, those enployees who are currently making $2 above the

m ni mum wage would wish to remain at this level. Therefore, the
af orenenti oned enployees would request a raise to nmintain a
wage that is $2 above the m ninmum wage. Additionally, the

enpl oyees who are nmaking a higher hourly wage, who have been
enpl oyed by the conpany I|onger, would request an equivalent
raise.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -14- February 23, 2007



REPRESENTATIVE NEUVAN inquired as to whether busi nesses
typically increase wages after the conpletion of a training
peri od.

M5. WLSON reiterated that her business increases wages after 30
days. She explained the process that occurs regardi ng seasona
enpl oyees versus pernmanent enpl oyees.

4:24: 26 PM

PAUL WOLFSON, Statistical Research Associate, Tuck School of
Busi ness, Dartnouth College, began by giving a brief history of
his education and experience. In order to determ ne who would
be affected by the mninmum wage increase, he |ooked at the
Current Popul ation Survey (CPS), a nonthly survey of 50 thousand
househol ds conducted by the U S. Census Bureau. He expl ai ned
that 25 percent of the households are asked detailed questions
regardi ng wages and salaries. He |ooked at this sanple for each
nonth of 2006. This sanple is drawn from househol ds around the
country, with an equal nunber of househol ds from each state.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS inquired as to whether this is
representative of the popul ation of each state.

MR. WOLFSON replied no. He explained that if done in this
manner, it would be difficult to “get a |large enough sanple to
say anything sensible about Al aska.” Continuing on, he
expl ained that he focused on those individuals earning between
the current wage and the proposed $8 per hour mninmm wage.
These individuals would be the nost likely to be effected by a
m ni mum wage i ncrease. He offered the followng findings:
About 4.5 percent of those enployed are in the aforenentioned
wage range; slightly fewer than half were nmale, slightly nore
than half were female; about two-thirds are Caucasian, while
about one-eighth are Alaskan Native or Anerican |Indian; about 40
percent are teenagers, 60 percent are adults; 40 percent of the
adults are over 25 years of age. He pointed out that the
average age of the adults is 38 years of age. Additionally, 25
percent of those in this wage range are parents. Nearly half of
these individuals live in households where the famly incone is
less than $30 thousand per year, while 25 percent live in
househol ds where the incone is |less than $15 thousand per year.

MR, WOLFSON, in summary, stated that those individuals nost
affected by the mninum wage are: less white, nore fenale,
predom nantly adults, and predomnantly |ow incone. He
expl ained that a great deal of research has been done regarding

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -15- February 23, 2007



this issue, and referred to a report done by David Card and Al an
B. Krueger regarding the effects a m ninum wage increase in New
Jersey had on fast food restaurants on both sides of the
Pennsyl vani a/ New Jersey border. Based on the analysis done, no
evidence was found to show a negative inpact on enploynent in
New Jer sey.

4:31: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS reiterated his earlier question regarding
whet her the m ni num wage increase resulted in less elasticity in
funds available to make payroll increases to enployees “in the
back of the house.”

MR. WOLFSON replied that this is possible; however, studies have
not considered this.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS inquired as to why this was not studied
He opined that this is an “uni ntended consequence.”

MR. WOLFSON replied that the nmain question in econon cs has been
“does enploynent take a hit when mnimum wage goes up,” which
has ramfications throughout the field. Additionally, the
information required for this analysis would be difficult to
gat her.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS inquired as to whether New York, New
Jersey, or Pennsylvania currently has a tip-tax credit in place.

MR. WOLFSON replied that he does not have this information, as
he is not famliar with the details in this area. He expl ai ned
that he is speaking as an econonmist, and is not intimtely
acquainted with the restaurant industry.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO questioned how a conclusion can be drawn
regardi ng enpl oynent, when all groups are not included.

MR WOLFSON replied that in the aforenmentioned study, no
distinction was made between |ow and high wage workers. Al
wor kers were considered, before and after the New Jersey m nimm
wage i ncrease.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS reiterated his earlier question regarding

how increasing the mninum wage affects payroll increases for
t he “back of the house.”

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -16- February 23, 2007



MR. WOLFSON replied that the increase may conme from various
sources, and agreed that this nay be one of them However, he
does not have evidence that shows this. Conti nuing on, he
stated that there is no official consensus on enploynent. He
noted that there is no strong evidence that a mninmm wage
increase is bad for enploynent. He pointed out that the m ni num
wage increase in Washington State resulted in enployees on the
| daho border seeking jobs in Wshington State, thus causing
busi nesses on the Idaho border to offer equivalent wages. He
explained that this may be related to higher quality workers, as
a result of the higher mninmm wage; it may also be due to the
workers’ willingness to work nore efficiently. Most studies
al so report a reduction in enployee turnover. He said “1 don’t
mean to inply that the mninum wage never reduces enploynent.”
In regard to a coment made by Representative Gatto questioni ng
whet her the m ni num wage should be increased to $15 or $20, if
increasing the wage would result in a better econony, he stated
that this is not necessarily the case. Historical data suggests

that small increases of 10 percent or |less, or when fewer than
10 percent of those working are directly inpacted, there is
little likelihood that this wll have a detectable negative

i npact on enpl oynent.
4:38:17 PM

CH P WAGONER, Executive Director, Alaska Conference of Catholic
Bi shops, began by noting the difficulties involved in deciding
on the appropriate mninum wage rate. He commented that each
i ndi vi dual deserves protection and dignity. He opined that for
an individual to maintain dignity and “a decent life,” he or she
must earn enough noney to provide food, clothing, shelter, and

medi cal needs. He explained that a person does not need the
ability to make extravagant purchases, but rather the ability to
earn a |iving wage. He agreed with the testinony provided by
M. Wbl fson. He surmsed that there are different ways for

busi nesses to deal with an increase in the m ni rum wage.
4:42: 50 PM

MR. WAGONER, in regard to union jobs, stated that bus drivers
currently nake twi ce the m ni num wage. He opined that there is
no reason for this requirenment, and suggested that nenbers’
consi der changing this. In response to Representative Ranras’
guestion regarding elasticity, he shared his belief that this is
a “false choice.” He opined that this assunes that the enpl oyer
nmust take noney from one enpl oyee group to cover the cost of the
m ni num wage i ncrease. However, there are other options. He

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -17- February 23, 2007



opined that increasing prices is the nost |ogical. He stressed
that enpl oyers have choi ces. He stated that the restaurant
industry is very difficult to succeed in, and offered his
understanding that when the econony is good, restaurants
prosper, as patrons have nore discretionary incone. He opi ned
that this is a bigger issue than an increase in the mninm
wage. He offered statistics to support this.

4:46: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS shared his experience in the restaurant
i ndustry.

4:48: 17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO inquired as to what hourly wage is required
to earn a “living wage.”

MR. WAGONER replied that in Juneau, this wage is around $19 per
hour .

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that a person cannot raise a
famly on $8 per hour. He inquired as to the goal behind
rai sing the m ni num wage.

MR. WAGONER replied that $8 per hour is a step in the right
di rection. In response to addi ti onal coment s from
Representative Gatto, he explained that the majority of
i ndi viduals earning the mninum wage are adults, 40 percent of
whom are the sole wage earners in their famlies.

4:51:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER brought attention to previous testinony
that 25 percent of those earning mnimum wage |ive in househol ds
with a household income of |ess than $15 thousand per year.
Additionally, 50 percent of those earning mninum wage live in

househol ds where the income is less than $30 thousand. She
poi nted out that earning $19 per hour equals around $40 thousand
per year. Additionally, only 40 percent of those individuals

earning the m ninum wage in Al aska are teenagers.

MR. WAGONER then discussed inflation indexing. He pointed out
that since 1959, individuals earning a m ni num wage have seen a
31 percent decrease in purchasing power. He opined that
adjusting the wage for inflation is fair to workers.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -18- February 23, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN pointed out that currently, 8 percent of
the workforce is earning m ni num wage. He opined that in 1959,
this figure was higher.

4:54:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HARRY CRAWORD, Al aska State Legislature, joint
prime sponsor, stated that previous the mninmum wage increase
resulted in an increase in enploynent rates. Busi nesses
prospered as a result, and there was no neasurabl e displacenent
of workers. In regard to mninmum wage increases resulting in
| ess enploynent, he stated that this has not borne out. He
stated that this has actually expanded the econony.

4:56:28 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, speaking as a joint prinme sponsor of HB

42, agreed that in order to have dignity, an individual nust be
able to earn a living wage. She opined that the mni rum wage

should supply this. She shared her experience earning the
m ni mum wage, and pointed out that she is a snmall business
owner . She said “I kind of see from a variety of points, but

what it cones down to is values....’
4:57:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER noved to report CSHB 42, Version 25-
LS0226\ K, Chenowet h/ Wayne, 2/ 9/ 07, out of commttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and t he acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Buch, Gardner, and
O son voted in favor of mnmving CSHB 42, Version K, from
comittee. Representati ves Neuman, Gatto, and Ranras voted
against it. Therefore, CSHB 42, Version K, failed to be
reported out of the House Labor and Conmerce Standing Conmittee
by a vote of 3-3.

4:58:41 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:58: 46 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -19- February 23, 2007



